

Section I

Notice of Development of Proposed Rules and Negotiated Rulemaking

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Licensing

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

5N-1.100 Organization

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: to clarify the meaning of “security services” and “guards” as used in section 493.6101 (18) and (19), Florida Statutes.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: security services.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 493.6103, FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 493.6102(6), 493.6105(6), 493.6115(8), 493.6121, 493.6203(2)-(4), 493.6303(2), (3) FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: the previously noticed workshop of September 4, 2026, is still set to proceed from 9:30 a.m. - 12:00 noon (noticed in FAR Vol 52, No. 148)

PLACE: Betty Easley Conference Room 166, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Susana Yglesias, Rulemaking Coordinator, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Licensing, P.O. Box 5647, Tallahassee, Florida 32314; Susana.Yglesias@fdacs.gov; (850)245-5480. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Kevin Gay, Records Analyst, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Licensing, P.O. Box 5647, Tallahassee, Florida 32314; DOLPublicRec@fdacs.gov; (850)245-5459.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

Section II

Proposed Rules

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Historical Resources

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

1A-39.001 Division of Historical Resources Grant
Programs & Requirements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to update and establish in rule the most recent grant program documents for the Small Matching, Special Category, and Abandoned African-American Cemeteries Grant Programs. The rule amendment would make changes to the programs' grant guidelines, grant application forms, grant award agreement forms, and other forms necessary to administer the grant programs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment would incorporate updated grant program documents as materials incorporated by reference in Rule 1A-39.001.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department used a checklist to conduct an economic analysis and determine whether there is an adverse impact or regulatory costs associated with this rule that exceeds the criteria in section 120.541(2)(a), Florida Statutes. Based on this analysis, it was determined that the Department's proposed rule does not increase fees or otherwise impose any other costs, directly or indirectly, on the regulated industry. Based on this information, the Department determined there will be no adverse impact to small businesses and the potential regulatory costs of the proposed rule do not exceed any of the criteria established in section 120.541(2)(a), Florida Statutes. Additionally, no interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a

statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: Sections 267.031(1), 267.0617(5), and 267.21(3), Florida Statutes.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Sections 267.0617(2), (3), and 267.21(2), Florida Statutes.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: September 4, 2026, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: R.A. Gray Building, 500 S. Bronough St., Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jon Morris, Chief Deputy General Counsel, Florida Department of State, at (850)245-6515 or Jon.Morris@DOS.FL.GOV.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

1A-39.001 Division of Historical Resources Grant Programs & Requirements.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) All grant applicants must meet the requirements set forth in the Historic Preservation Grants-in-Aid Small Matching Grant Guidelines, effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1978748177>, Special Category Grant Guidelines, effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1978848178>, and Abandoned African-American Cemeteries Grant Guidelines, effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1978948179>, which are available from the Division of Historical Resources (Division) and are hereby incorporated by reference.

(a) through (c) No change.

(4) The following application forms are available from the Division at <http://www.dos.myflorida.com/historical/grants>, and are hereby incorporated by reference:

(a) Small Matching Grant Application (Form DHR001), effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1980348180>.

(b) Special Category Grant Application (Form DHR002), effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1980448181>.

(c) Abandoned African-American Cemeteries Grant Application (Form DHR009), effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1980548182>.

(5) The following forms are used in the administration of all Historic Preservation Grants-in-Aid and are hereby incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.dos.myflorida.com/historical/grants>:

(a) No change.

(b) Preservation Agreement (Form DHR007), effective XX/XXXX 05/2018, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1980609337>.

(c) No change.

(d) Grant Award Agreement (Form GAA001), effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1980848184>.

(e) Abandoned African-American Cemeteries Grant Award Agreement (Form GAA002), effective XX/XXXX 07/2025, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1980948185>.

(6) No change.

(7) Additional Requirements. The following additional requirements apply to the Division's historic preservation grants-in-aid programs:

(a) No change.

(b) Historic properties receiving historic preservation grants-in-aid assistance from the Division will be maintained consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring and Reconstructing Historic Buildings ("Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties") ~~Rehabilitation~~, effective 2017, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1981009341>, herein incorporated by reference, in accordance with the terms of either a Preservation Agreement or Restrictive Covenant.

(c) All grant funding provided by the Small Matching Grant Program and Special Category Grant Program must be utilized in accordance with the standards, as applicable to the specific project type, contained in the Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties as incorporated into paragraph (7)(b), and the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation, published in the Federal Register at 48 Fed. Reg. 44716 effective (September 29, 1983), <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-1981108164>, which are herein incorporated by reference, and include:

1. ~~The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (revised 2017)~~;

2. through 5. Renumbered 1. through 4. No change.

(d) through (e) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 267.031(1), 267.0617(5), 267.21(3) FS. Law Implemented 267.0617(2), (3), 267.21(2) FS. History—New 10-14-09, Amended 4-21-15, 9-2-15, 6-15-16, 6-1-17, 5-10-18, 5-20-19, 5-7-20, 6-8-21, 7-19-22, 7-6-23, 11-29-23, 7-14-24, 7-16-25.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Alissa Lotane, Director, Division of Historical Resources.

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Cord Byrd, Secretary of State.

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 3, 2026

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: March 5, 2026

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

RULE NO.: 25-4.0161
RULE TITLE: Regulatory Assessment Fees; Telecommunications Companies

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To update and clarify the rule to include current Commission form references and hyperlinks and to effect the review mandated by Section 120.5435, F.S.

Docket No. 20260041-OT

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments delete obsolete provisions, update the hyperlinks and Commission forms incorporated by reference, and provide necessary updates to conform to Commission practice and procedure.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has been prepared by the Agency.

The SERC can be viewed in its entirety on the Commission's website at <https://www.floridapsc.com/pscfiles/library/filings/2026/05014-2026/05014-2026.pdf>.

The SERC examined the factors required by Section 120.541(2), F.S., and concluded that the rule amendments will not likely increase regulatory costs, including any transactional costs, or have an adverse impact on business competitiveness, productivity, or innovation in excess of \$1 million in the aggregate within five years of implementation. The proposed rule amendments would have no impact on small business, would have no implementation cost to the Commission or other state and local government entities, and would have no impact on small cities or counties.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is

required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: based upon the information contained in the SERC.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 350.127(2), F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 350.113, 364.285, 364.336, F.S.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jennifer Augspurger, Office of General Counsel, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850, (850)413-6199, jaugspur@psc.state.fl.us.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

25-4.0161 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Telecommunications Companies.

(1) No change.

~~(2)(a) For the interim period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011, as applicable and as provided in Sections 350.113 and 364.336, F.S., each company shall remit a fee based upon its gross operating revenue as provided below. Each company that has paid by August 15, 2011, regulatory assessment fees for the period January 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011, shall pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 0.0016 of its gross operating revenues derived from intrastate business during the period July 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011. Each company that has not paid any regulatory assessment fees for the period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011, shall pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 0.0018 of its gross operating revenues derived from intrastate business. The minimum regulatory assessment fees provided in paragraph (2)(b) shall apply and shall be filed in accordance with the schedules provided in subsections (3) and (4). For the purpose of determining this fee, each telecommunications company shall deduct from gross operating revenues any amount paid to another telecommunications company for the use of any telecommunications network to provide service to its customers.~~

(2)(b) Effective January 1, 2012, as applicable and as provided in Sections 350.113 and 364.336, F.S., each company must ~~shall~~ remit a fee based upon its gross operating revenue as provided below. This fee is ~~shall be~~ referred to as a regulatory assessment fee, and each company must ~~shall~~ pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 0.0016 of its gross operating revenues derived from intrastate business. For the purpose of determining this fee, each telecommunications company must

~~shall~~ deduct from gross operating revenues any amount paid to another telecommunications company for the use of any telecommunications network to provide service to its customers. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual regulatory assessment fee will ~~shall~~ be imposed as follows:

(a) ~~1-~~ No change.

(b) ~~2-~~ No change.

(3) Telecommunications companies that owed gross regulatory assessment fees of \$10,000 or more for the preceding calendar year must ~~shall~~ pay the fee and remit the appropriate form twice a year. The regulatory assessment fee and appropriate form must ~~shall~~ be filed no later than July 30 for the preceding period of January 1 through June 30, and no later than January 30 of the following year for the period of July 1 through December 31. Telecommunications companies that owed gross regulatory assessment fees of less than \$10,000 for the preceding calendar year must ~~shall~~ pay the fee and remit the appropriate form once a year. The regulatory assessment fee and appropriate form must ~~shall~~ be filed no later than January 30 of the subsequent year for the current calendar year operations.

(4) If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the due date is extended to the next business day. If the fees are sent by registered mail, the date of the registration is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. If the fees are sent by certified mail and the receipt is postmarked by a postal employee, the date on the receipt is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. The postmarked certified mail receipt is evidence that the fees were mailed ~~delivered~~. Regulatory assessment fees are considered paid on the date they are postmarked by the United States Postal Service or received and logged in by the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services in Tallahassee. Fees are considered timely paid if properly addressed, with sufficient postage, and postmarked no later than the due date.

(5) Commission Form PSC 1039 (08/26) ~~PSC/TEL 159 (12/11)~~, entitled "Local Telephone Service Provider Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19792>, and <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00761>; Form PSC/TEL 160 (12/11), entitled "Interim Local Telephone Service Provider Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00762>; Form PSC 1038 (08/26) ~~PSC/TEL 26 (12/11)~~, entitled "Pay Telephone Service Provider Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19791>, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00760>; and Form PSC/TEL 161 (12/11), entitled "Interim Pay

~~Telephone Service Provider Regulatory Assessment Fee Return,"~~ is available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00763>.

These forms are incorporated into this rule by reference and may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services. The failure of a telecommunications company to receive a return form does ~~shall~~ not excuse the company from its obligation to timely remit the regulatory assessment fees.

(6) Each telecommunications company has ~~shall have~~ up to and including the due date in which to submit the applicable form and:

(a) through (b) No change.

(7) Where the company remits less than its full fee, the remainder of the full fee is ~~shall be~~ due on or before the 30th day from the due date and must ~~shall~~, where the amount remitted was less than 90 percent of the total regulatory assessment fee, include interest as provided by paragraph (9)(b) of this rule.

(8) A company may request either a 15-day or a 30-day extension of its due date for payment of regulatory assessment fees or for filing its return form by submitting, to the Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services, Commission Form PSC 1037 (08/26), ~~PSC/AIT 124 (12/11)~~ entitled "Regulatory Assessment Fee Extension Request," which is incorporated into this rule by reference and is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19790>, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-00764>. This form may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) If ~~Where~~ a telecommunications company receives an extension of its due date pursuant to this rule, the telecommunications company must ~~shall~~ remit a charge as set out in Section 350.113(5), F.S., in addition to the regulatory assessment fees.

(9) The delinquency of any amount due to the Commission from the telecommunications company pursuant to the provisions of Section 350.113, F.S., and this rule, begins with the first calendar day after any date established as the due date either by operation of this rule or by an extension pursuant to this rule.

(a) A penalty, as set out in Section 350.113, F.S., applies ~~shall apply~~ to any such delinquent amounts.

(b) Interest at the rate of 12 percent per annum applies ~~shall apply~~ to any such delinquent amounts.

(10) The Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services will ~~shall~~ send by certified mail a regulatory assessment fee delinquency notice to any company that fails to file a regulatory assessment fee return and that fails

to pay the regulatory assessment fee by the date specified in subsection (3), unless the company has met the requirements of subsections (7) and (8).

(11) If a company fails to pay the regulatory assessment fee within 20 days after receiving a delinquency notice, the Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services, in cooperation with the ~~Division of Economics Office of Telecommunications~~ and the Office of General Counsel, will establish a docket and administratively issue a "Notice of Proposed Agency Action Order Imposing Penalties and Collection Costs, and Requiring Payment of Delinquent Regulatory Assessment Fees, or Cancelling Certificates for Violation of Rule 25-4.0161, F.A.C., and Section 364.336, F.S." The company must pay the past due regulatory assessment fees, the penalty and interest for late payment as provided in Section 350.113, F.S., and as stated in subsection (9) above, and must also pay the applicable penalty stated in subsection (12) for failure to file the regulatory assessment fee return.

(12) Pursuant to Section 364.285, F.S., the Commission has the authority to impose a penalty or cancel a certificate if a company refuses to comply with Commission rules, orders, or Florida Statutes. The penalty, which includes ~~will include~~ collection costs, for failure to file the regulatory assessment fee return by the date stated in the delinquency notice is ~~shall be~~ as follows:

(a) through (c) No change.

Failure of the company to pay the full amount due and stated in the Notice of Proposed Agency Action will result in the cancellation of the company's certificate.

(13) For a company's fourth failure to pay the regulatory assessment fee after being sent a delinquency notice, Commission staff will ~~shall~~ file a recommendation to the Commission for further action.

(14) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2) FS. Law Implemented 350.113, 364.285, 364.336 FS. History—New 5-18-83, Formerly 25-4.161, Amended 10-19-86, 1-1-91, 12-29-91, 1-8-95, 12-26-95, 7-7-96, 11-11-99, 12-7-04, 10-6-05, 4-16-07, 12-4-11,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Cecilia Galloway

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE
PROPOSED RULE: Florida Public Service Commission

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: August 4, 2026

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAR: March 26, 2026, Volume 52, Number
59

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

RULE NO.: 25-6.0131
RULE TITLE: Regulatory Assessment Fees; Investor-owned Electric Companies, Municipal Electric Utilities, Rural Electric Cooperatives

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To update and clarify the rule to include current Commission form references and hyperlinks and to effect the review mandated by Section 120.5435, F.S.

Docket No. 20260041-OT

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments update the hyperlinks and Commission forms incorporated by reference and provide necessary updates to conform to Commission practice and procedure.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has been prepared by the Agency.

The SERC can be viewed in its entirety on the Commission's website at

<https://www.floridapsc.com/pscfiles/library/filings/2026/04990-2026/04990-2026.pdf>.

The SERC examined the factors required by Section 120.541(2), F.S., and concluded that the proposed rule amendments will not likely increase regulatory costs, including any transactional costs, or have an adverse impact on business competitiveness, productivity, or innovation in excess of \$1 million in the aggregate within five years of implementation. The proposed rule amendments would have no impact on small business, would have no implementation cost to the Commission or other state and local government entities, and would have no impact on small cities or counties.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: based upon the information contained in the SERC.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 350.127(2), 366.05, F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 350.113, 366.14, F.S.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jennifer Augspurger, Office of General Counsel, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850, (850)413-6199, jaugspur@psc.state.fl.us.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

25-6.0131 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Investor-owned Electric Companies, Municipal Electric Utilities, Rural Electric Cooperatives.

(1) As applicable and as provided in Section 350.113, F.S., and Section 366.14, F.S., each company, utility, or cooperative ~~must shall~~ remit to the Commission a fee based upon its gross operating revenue. This fee ~~is shall be~~ referred to as a regulatory assessment fee. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, utility, or cooperative, a minimum annual regulatory assessment fee of \$25 ~~will shall~~ be imposed.

(a) Each investor-owned electric company ~~must shall~~ pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 0.000848 of its gross operating revenues derived from intrastate business, excluding sales for resale between investor-owned electric companies, municipal electric utilities, and rural electric cooperatives or any combination thereof.

(b) Each municipal electric utility and rural electric cooperative ~~must shall~~ pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 0.00009905 of its gross operating revenues derived from intrastate business, excluding sales for resale between investor-owned electric companies, municipal electric utilities, and rural electric cooperatives or any combination thereof.

(2) No change.

(3) If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a holiday, the due date is extended to the next business day. If the fees are sent by registered mail, the date of the registration is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. If the fees are sent by certified mail and the receipt is postmarked by a postal employee, the date on the receipt is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. The postmarked certified mail receipt is evidence that the fees were ~~mailed delivered~~. Regulatory assessment fees are considered paid on the date they are postmarked by the United States Postal Service or received and logged in by the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services in Tallahassee. Fees are considered timely paid if properly addressed, with sufficient postage and postmarked no later than the due date.

(4) Commission Form PSC 1040 (08/26) PSC/ECO-68 (01/24), entitled "Investor-Owned Electric Utility Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19793>; ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-16449~~; Commission Form PSC 1041 (08/26) PSC/ECO-69 (01/24), entitled "Municipal Electric Utility Regulatory Assessment Fee

Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19794>

~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-16450~~; and Commission Form PSC 1042 (08/26) PSC/ECO-70 (01/24), entitled "Rural Electric Cooperative Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at

<http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19795> ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-16448~~.

These forms are incorporated into this rule by reference and may ~~be~~ also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services. The failure of a company, utility, or cooperative to receive a return form ~~does shall~~ not excuse the company, utility, or cooperative from its obligation to timely remit the regulatory assessment fees.

(5) Each company, utility, or cooperative ~~has shall have~~ up to and including the due date in which to:

(a) though (b) No change.

(6) Where the company, utility, or cooperative remits less than its full fee, the remainder of the full fee ~~is shall be~~ due on or before the 30th day from the due date and ~~must shall~~, where the amount remitted was less than 90 percent of the total regulatory assessment fee, include interest as provided by paragraph (8)(b) of this rule.

(7) A company, utility, or cooperative may request either a 15-day or a 30-day extension of its due date for payment of regulatory assessment fees or for filing its return form by submitting to the Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services Commission Form PSC 1037 (08/26) PSC/AIT-124 (12/11), entitled "Regulatory Assessment Fee Extension Request," which is incorporated into this rule by reference and is available at: <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19941> ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02620~~. This form may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) ~~If Where~~ a company, utility, or cooperative receives an extension of its due date pursuant to this rule, the entity ~~must shall~~ remit a charge as set out in Section 350.113(5), F.S., in addition to the regulatory assessment fee.

(8) The delinquency of any amount due to the Commission from the company, utility, or cooperative pursuant to the provisions of Section 350.113, F.S., and this rule, begins with the first calendar day after any date established as the due date either by operation of this rule or by an extension pursuant to this rule.

(a) A penalty, as set out in Section 350.113(4), F.S., ~~applies shall apply~~ to any such delinquent amounts.

(b) Interest at the rate of 12 percent per annum ~~applies shall~~ apply to any such delinquent amounts.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05 FS. Law Implemented 350.113, 366.14 FS. History—New 5-18-83, Amended 2-9-84, Formerly 25-6.131, Amended 6-18-86, 10-16-86, 3-7-89, 2-19-92, 7-7-96, 1-1-99, 5-7-13, 4-1-24, ____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

Cecilia Galloway

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Public Service Commission

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 4, 2026

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: March 26, 2026, Volume 52, Number 59

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

25-7.0131 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Gas Utilities, Gas Municipals, and Gas Districts

25-7.101 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Natural Gas Transmission Companies

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To update and clarify the rules to include current Commission form references and hyperlinks and to effect the review mandated by Section 120.5435, F.S. Docket No. 20260041-OT

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments update the hyperlinks and Commission forms incorporated by reference and provide necessary updates to conform to Commission practice and procedure.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has been prepared by the Agency.

The SERC can be viewed in its entirety on the Commission's website at <https://www.floridapsc.com/pscfiles/library/filings/2026/04991-2026/04991-2026.pdf>.

The SERC examined the factors required by Section 120.541(2), F.S., and concluded that the proposed rule amendments will not likely increase regulatory costs, including any transactional costs, or have an adverse impact on business competitiveness, productivity, or innovation in excess of \$1 million in the aggregate within five years of implementation. The proposed rule amendments would have no impact on small business, would have no implementation cost to the

Commission or other state and local government entities, and would have no impact on small cities or counties.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: based upon the information contained in the SERC.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 350.127(2), 366.05, 368.104, F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 350.113, 366.14, 368.109, F.S.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jennifer Augspurger, Office of General Counsel, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850, (850)413-6199, jaugspur@psc.state.fl.us.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

25-7.0131 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Gas Utilities, Gas Municipals, and Gas Districts.

(1) As applicable and as provided in Sections 350.113 and 366.14, F.S., each gas utility, municipal, or gas district ~~shall~~ must remit a fee based upon its gross operating revenue. This fee ~~is shall be~~ referred to as a regulatory assessment fee. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual regulatory assessment fee of \$25 ~~will shall~~ be imposed.

(a) Each investor-owned gas utility ~~must shall~~ must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of .005 of its gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business, excluding sales for resale between public utilities, municipal gas utilities, and gas districts or any combination thereof.

(b) Each municipal or gas district ~~must shall~~ must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 0.001919 of its gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business, excluding sales for resale between public utilities, municipal gas utilities, and gas district or any combination thereof.

(2) No change.

(3) If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, the due date is extended to the next business day. If the fees are sent by registered mail, the date of the registration is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. If the fees are sent by certified mail and the receipt is postmarked by a postal employee, the date and the receipt is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. The postmarked certified mail receipt

is evidence that the fees were mailed delivered. Regulatory assessment fees are considered paid on the date they are postmarked by the United States Postal Service or received and logged in by the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services in Tallahassee. Fees are considered timely paid if properly addressed, with sufficient postage and postmarked no later than the due date.

(4) Commission Form PSC 1044 (08/26) PSC/AFD-67 (01/99), entitled "Investor-Owned Natural Gas Utility Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19797>; ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02613>~~ and Form PSC 1043 (08/26) PSC/AFD-71 (07/96), entitled "Gas Municipal or Gas District Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19796>; ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02614>~~. These forms are incorporated into this rule by reference and may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services. The failure of a utility to receive a return form does shall not excuse the utility from its obligation to timely remit the regulatory assessment fees.

(5) Each utility, municipal, and gas district has shall have up to and including the due date in which to:

- (a) Remit the total amount of its fee, or
- (b) No change.

(6) Where the utility, municipal, or gas district remits less than its full fee, the remainder of the full fee is shall be due on or before the 30th day from the due date and must shall, where the amount remitted was less than 90 percent of the total regulatory assessment fee, include interest as provided by paragraph (8)(b) of this rule.

(7) A utility, municipal, or gas district may request either a 15-day or a 30-day extension of its due date for payment of regulatory assessment fees or for filing its return form by submitting to the Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services Commission Form PSC 1037 (08/26) PSC/AIT-124 (12/11) entitled "Regulatory Assessment Fee Extension Request," which is incorporated into this rule by reference and is available at: <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19943>; ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02621>~~. This form may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services.

- (a) through (b) No change.

(c) If Where a utility, municipal, or gas district receives an extension of its due date pursuant to this rule, the entity must utility, municipal, or gas district shall remit a charge as set out

in Section 350.113(5), F.S., in addition to the regulatory assessment fee.

(8) The delinquency of any amount due to the Commission from the utility, municipal, or gas district pursuant to the provisions of Section 350.113, F.S., and this rule, begins with the first calendar day after any date established as the due date either by operation of this rule or by an extension pursuant to this rule.

(a) A penalty, as set out in Section 350.113, F.S., applies shall apply to any such delinquent amounts.

(b) Interest at the rate of 12 percent per annum applies shall apply to any such delinquent amounts.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05 FS. Law Implemented 350.113, 366.14 FS. History—New 5-18-83, Formerly 25-7.131, Amended 10-19-86, 4-25-90, 7-7-96, 1-1-99, 5-7-13, _____.

25-7.101 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Natural Gas Transmission Companies.

(1) As provided in Section 368.109, F.S., each natural gas transmission company must shall pay a regulatory assessment fee. The regulatory assessment fee is shall be 0.25 percent annually of the natural gas transmission company's gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business, excluding sales of gas for resale to natural gas transmission companies, public utilities that supply gas, municipal gas utilities and gas districts.

(2) No change.

(3) If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, the due date is extended to the next business day. If the fees are sent by registered mail, the date of the registration is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. If the fees are sent by certified mail and the receipt is postmarked by a postal employee, the date on the receipt is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. The postmarked certified mail receipt is evidence that the fees were mailed delivered. Regulatory assessment fees are considered paid on the date they are postmarked by the United States Postal Service or received and logged in by the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services in Tallahassee. Fees are considered timely paid if properly addressed, with sufficient postage, and postmarked no later than the due date.

(4) Commission Form PSC 1045 (08/26) PSC/AFD-244 (02/98), entitled "Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Company Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is incorporated into this rule by reference and is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19798>; ~~<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02615>~~. This form may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services. The failure of a utility to receive a return form does

~~shall~~ not excuse the utility from its obligation to timely remit the regulatory assessment fees.

(5) Each natural gas transmission company ~~has~~ ~~shall have~~ up to and including the due date in which to remit the total amount of its fee.

(6) Where the natural gas transmission company remits less than its full fee, the remainder of the full fee ~~is~~ ~~shall be~~ due on or before the 30th day from the due date and must ~~shall~~, where the amount remitted was less than 90 percent of the total regulatory assessment fee, include interest as provided by paragraph (8)(b) of this rule.

(7) A company may request either a 15-day or a 30-day extension of its due date for payment of regulatory assessment fees or for filing its return form by submitting, to the Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services, Commission Form PSC 1037 (08/26), ~~PSC/AIT 124 (12/11)~~ entitled "Regulatory Assessment Fee Extension Request," which is incorporated by reference in Rule 25-7.0131, F.A.C. This form may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) ~~If~~ ~~Where~~ a utility receives either a 15-day or a 30-day extension of its due date pursuant to this rule, the utility must ~~shall~~ remit a charge as set out in Section 350.113(5), F.S., in addition to the regulatory assessment fee.

(8) The delinquency of any amount due to the Commission from the company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 368.109, F.S., and this rule, begins with the first calendar day after any date established as the due date by operation of this rule.

(a) A penalty, as set out in Section 350.113, F.S., applies ~~shall apply~~ to any such delinquent amounts.

(b) Interest at the rate of 12 percent per annum applies ~~shall apply~~ to any such delinquent amounts.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 368.104 FS. Law Implemented 350.113, 368.109 FS. History—New 9-13-98, Amended 5-7-13, ____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Cecilia Galloway

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE
PROPOSED RULE: Florida Public Service Commission

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: August 4, 2026

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAR: March 26, 2026, Volume 52, Number
59

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

25-30.120 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Water and
Wastewater Utilities

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To update and clarify the rule to include current Commission form references and hyperlinks to effect the review mandated by Section 120.5435, F.S. Docket No. 20260041-OT

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments update the Commission forms incorporated by reference in the rule, the hyperlinks to the forms, and provide necessary updates to conform to Commission practice and procedure.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED
REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE
RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has been prepared by the Agency.

The SERC can be viewed in its entirety on the Commission's website

at
<https://www.floridapsc.com/pscfiles/library/filings/2026/04988-2026/04988-2026.pdf>.

The SERC examined the factors required by Section 120.541(2), F.S., and concluded that the proposed rule amendments will not likely increase regulatory costs, including any transactional costs, or have an adverse impact on business competitiveness, productivity, or innovation in excess of \$1 million in the aggregate within five years of implementation. The proposed rule amendments would have no impact on small business, would have no implementation cost to the Commission or other state and local government entities, and would have no impact on small cities or counties.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: based upon the information contained in the SERC.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 350.127(2), 367.121, F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 350.113, 367.145, 367.161, F.S.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS
NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND
ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jennifer Augspurger, Office of General Counsel, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850, (850)413-6199, jaugspur@psc.state.fl.us.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

25-30.120 Regulatory Assessment Fees; Water and Wastewater Utilities.

(1) As applicable and as provided in Section 350.113, F.S., each utility ~~must shall~~ remit a fee based upon its gross operating revenue. This fee ~~is shall be~~ referred to as a regulatory assessment fee. Each utility ~~must shall~~ pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 0.045 of its gross revenues derived from intrastate business. The gross revenues reported for regulatory assessment fee purposes must agree with the amount reported as operating revenue on Schedule F-3 of the Operating Statement in the company's Annual Report, filed in accordance with Rule 25-30.110, F.A.C. A minimum annual regulatory assessment fee of \$25 ~~will shall~~ be imposed if there are no revenues or if revenues are insufficient to generate a minimum annual fee.

(2) The obligation to remit the regulatory assessment fees for any year ~~applies shall apply~~ to any utility that is subject to this Commission's jurisdiction on or before December 31 of that year or for any part of that year.

(a) For large utilities with annual revenues of \$200,000 or more based on the most recent prior calendar year, regulatory assessment fees ~~must shall~~ be filed with the Commission on or before July 30 for the preceding period or any part of the period from January 1 until June 30, and on January 30 for the preceding period or any part of the period from July 1 until December 31. Commission Form PSC 1046 (08/26), ~~PSC/AFD 010 WL (02/05)~~ entitled "Large Water Utility Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19799>, ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02618~~ and Commission Form PSC 1048 (08/26), ~~PSC/AFD 017 WL (02/05)~~ entitled "Large Wastewater Utility Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19801>, ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02619~~. These forms are incorporated into this rule by reference and may also be obtained from the Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services. The failure of a utility to receive a return form ~~does shall~~ not excuse the utility from its obligation to timely remit the regulatory assessment fees.

(b) For small utilities with annual revenues of less than \$200,000 based on the most recent prior calendar year, regulatory assessment fees ~~must shall~~ be filed with the Commission on or before March 31 for the preceding year

ended December 31. Commission Form PSC 1047 (08/26), ~~PSC/AFD 010 WS (02/05)~~ entitled "Small Water Utility Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19800>, ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02616~~ and Commission Form PSC 1049 (08/26), ~~PSC/AFD 017 WS (02/05)~~ entitled "Small Wastewater Utility Regulatory Assessment Fee Return," is available at <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19802>, ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02617~~. These forms are incorporated into this rule by reference and may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services. The failure of a utility to receive a return form ~~does shall~~ not excuse the utility from its obligation to timely remit the regulatory assessment fees.

(c) For the purpose of this rule, a utility operating both a water system and a wastewater system ~~must shall~~ consider each system separately in determining the revenue threshold for filing regulatory assessment fees on either an annual or semi-annual basis.

(d) No change.

(3) If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, the due date is extended to the next business day. If the fees are sent by registered mail, the date of the registration is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. If the fees are sent by certified mail and the receipt is postmarked by a postal employee, the date on the receipt is the United States Postal Service's postmark date. The postmarked certified mail receipt is evidence that the fees were ~~mailed delivered~~.

(4) Each utility ~~has shall have~~ up to and including the due date in which to:

(a) though (b) No change.

(5) No change.

(6) A utility may request either a 15-day or a 30-day extension of its due date for payment of regulatory assessment fees or for filing its return form by submitting to the Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services Commission Form PSC 1037 (08/26), ~~PSC/AIT 124 (12/11)~~ entitled "Regulatory Assessment Fee Extension Request," which is incorporated into this rule by reference and is available at: <http://flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19942>, ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02622~~. This form may also be obtained from the Commission's Division of Administrative and Information Technology Services.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) ~~If Where~~ a utility receives either a 15-day extension or a 30-day extension of its due date pursuant to this rule, the utility ~~must shall~~ remit a charge as set out in Section 350.113(5), F.S., in addition to the regulatory assessment fee.

(7) The delinquency of any amount due to the Commission from the utility pursuant to the provisions of Section 350.113, F.S., and this rule, begins with the first calendar day after any date established as the due date either by operation of this rule or by an extension pursuant to this rule.

(a) Pursuant to Section 350.113, F.S., a penalty will ~~shall~~ be assessed against any utility that fails to pay its regulatory assessment fee by March 31, in the following manner:

1. through 2. No change.

(b) No change.

(8) Any utility that requests and receives an extension of not more than 30 days, or remits, by the due date, an estimated fee payment of at least 90 percent of the actual fee due, will ~~shall~~ not be charged interest or penalty on the balance due if the balance is paid within the extension period.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 367.121(1) FS. Law Implemented 350.113, 367.145, 367.161 FS. History—New 5-18-83, Formerly 25-10.24, Amended 10-19-86, Formerly 25-10.024, Amended 11-10-86, 2-8-90, 7-7-96, 2-3-05, 5-7-13, ____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Cecilia Galloway

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE
PROPOSED RULE: Florida Public Service Commission

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: August 04, 2026

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAR: March 26, 2026, Volume 52, Number
59

Section III

Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Dentistry

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
64B5-2.0142 Application for Health Access Dental
License

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following technical change has been made to the above rule:

64B5-2.0142 Application for Health Access Dental License.

Any person wishing to be issued a Health Access Dental License shall apply to the Board of Dentistry. The application shall be made on the Application for Health Access Dental License form #DH-MQA 1154 (Revised 5/2025), available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18395>,

hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, and can be obtained at <http://www.floridadentistry.gov>.

Rulemaking Authority 456.013, 466.004 FS. Law Implemented 456.013, 456.0135, 456.048, 456.0635, 466.006, 466.0067 FS. History—New 2-12-12, Amended 12-11-12, 11-7-16, 10-4-18, 10-22-19, 8-31-21, 8-25-25, Technical Change 8-18-26.

NOTE:

Change to DH-MQA 1154 Application for Health Access Dental Licensure.

Page 3, 1st paragraph last sentence: Change of s. 466.003(14) to s. 466.003(15).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE
RULE IS: Traci Zeh, Executive Director, Board of
Dentistry/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258; (850) 488-0595 or
Traci.Zeh@flhealth.gov

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
65A-4.218 Child Care

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following technical change has been made to the above rule:

65A-4.218 Child Care.

(1) through (5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.095(1), 445.030, 445.032 FS. History—New 3-5-95, Formerly 10C-1.519, Amended 8-18-97, 3-12-00, Formerly 65A-1.519, Amended 5-1-01, 2-2-20, Technical Change 8-18-26.

Section IV

Emergency Rules

NOTE: The full text of Emergency Rules that are currently in effect can be viewed by going to <http://flrules.org/Notice/emergencyRules.asp>.

Section V

Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-1.004 General Sanitation and Safety Requirements

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on August 17, 2026, the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation,

Division of Hotels and Restaurants, received a petition for An Emergency Variance for paragraph 61C-1.004(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code and Paragraph 5-202.11(A), 2017 FDA Food Code from SMG Food & Beverage LLC. located in Jacksonville. The above referenced F.A.C. addresses the requirement that each establishment have an approved plumbing system installed to transport potable water and wastewater. They are requesting to utilize holding tanks to provide potable water and to collect wastewater at the handwash sink.

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 5 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received before 5:00 p.m.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Daisy.Aleman@myfloridalicense.com, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1011.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-5.001 Safety Standards

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on August 05, 2026, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for Tower Place at 1511 N Westshore Blvd., Tampa, FL 33607. Petitioner seeks a routine permanent variance from the requirements of ASME A17.1, 2019 Edition, Section 2.8.1 and 2.8.2.2, as adopted by 61C-5.001, Florida Administrative Code, that requires no foreign equipment to be placed in an elevator hoistway, which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 14 days of the publication of this notice with the Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW2026-106).

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013, elevators.dhr@myfloridalicense.com.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-21.026 HC Credit Underwriting Procedures

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the waiver from paragraph 67-21.026(13)(e), F.A.C. (2022) for Cordoba FL TC, LP, with respect to work already self-performed by Petitioner's General Contractor in excess of the Rule's limitation of the lesser of

\$350,000 or 5 percent of the construction contract. In light of Florida Housing's prior identification of instances in which the General Contractor exceeded the applicable self-performance limitation, the waiver is granted subject to the following conditions:

- (1) All of the General Contractor's self-performed work shall be recognized at actual cost, with no built-in profit, administrative costs, or markup included in the self-performed line items;
- (2) As part of the final cost certification process, an independent certified public accountant shall verify the amount paid to the General Contractor for the self-performed work in accordance with the General Contractor Cost Certification Instructions and shall confirm that all such work was performed at and limited to actual cost, with no profit, administrative costs, or markup included in the self-performed line items. In addition, the independent certified public accountant shall verify an additional 40 percent of the Development's costs in accordance with the Final Cost Certification Application Package; and
- (3) No General Contractor fee or Developer Fee shall be allowed on the portion of the self-performed work that exceeds the de minimis threshold. If a General Contractor fee attributable to the self-performed work has already been paid, the amount paid shall be paid from, and reflected as a subset of, the Developer Fee on the Development Final Cost Certification. Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on June 2, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on June 3, 2026 in Vol. 52, Number 107 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NOS.:RULE TITLES:

67-21.002 Definitions

67-21.003 Application and Selection Process for Developments

67-21.028 HC with Tax-Exempt Bond-Financed Developments

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the waiver from paragraph 67-21.003(1)(b), subsections 67-21.002(9), 67-21.002(85) and paragraph 67-21.028(3)(j), F.A.C. (2016) for Glorieta Partners, Ltd., approving, notwithstanding the absence of prior Board approval, the removal of New Vision Glorieta, LLC and Glorieta LLC as Petitioner's general partners and the designation of R4 GGOL GP LLC as the replacement general partner, and to permit the ownership structure of R4 GGOL GP

LLC to extend beyond the third principal disclosure level. The waiver of Rule 67-21.028(3)(j), F.A.C. (2016), is limited to the extent that it incorporates the foregoing requirements. All other applicable requirements remain in effect. Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on June 3, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on June 5, 2026 in Vol. 52, Number 109 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NOS.:RULE TITLES:

67-21.002 Definitions

67-21.003 Application and Selection Process for Developments

67-21.028 HC with Tax-Exempt Bond-Financed Developments

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the waiver from paragraph 67-21.003(1)(b), subsections 67-21.002(9), 67-21.002(85) and paragraph 67-21.028(3)(j), F.A.C. (2016) for Glorieta Partners, Ltd., approving, notwithstanding the absence of prior Board approval, the removal of New Vision Glorieta, LLC and Glorieta LLC as Petitioner's general partners and the designation of R4 GGOL GP LLC as the replacement general partner, and to permit the ownership structure of R4 GGOL GP LLC to extend beyond the third principal disclosure level. The waiver of paragraph 67-21.028(3)(j), F.A.C. (2016), is limited to the extent that it incorporates the foregoing requirements. All other applicable requirements remain in effect. Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on June 3, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on June 5, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 109 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-48.002 Definitions

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the waiver from subsection 67-48.002(96), F.A.C., (07/07/2024) and the Timing Provisions of

Subsection II.J. of the 2024 QAP for The Residences Fort Myers, Ltd., allowing Petitioner to immediately return its 2025 Housing Credit Allocation and receive a replacement allocation of 2026 Housing Credits, subject to the following conditions:

- (i) The Principals of Petitioner and its Developer entities are prohibited from submitting any Priority 1 Application, in RFA 2027-106, the next corresponding RFA for which those Principals are eligible to apply. If the Applicant does not close on the limited partnership agreement or limited liability company operating agreement and meet the 10% Test requirement within one year after execution of the 2026 Carryover Allocation Agreement, the prohibition will extend to any future RFA until the Petitioner has closed on the limited partnership agreement or limited liability company operating agreement and met the 10% Test requirement; and
- (ii) Notwithstanding condition (i), if Petitioner does not close on the Corporation funding sources and the applicable limited partnership or limited liability company operating agreement, and instead returns all Corporation funding awarded to the Development, the Principals of Petitioner and Developer entities will remain eligible to participate in the following year's competitive RFA cycle.

Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on July 22, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on July 23, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 142 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-48.0072 Credit Underwriting and Loan Procedures

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the waiver from paragraph 67-48.0072(17)(f), F.A.C. (2022) for Ambar Riverview, Ltd., with respect to work already self-performed by Petitioner's General Contractor in excess of the Rule's limitation of the lesser of \$350,000 or 5 percent of the construction contract, subject to the following conditions:

- (1) All of the General Contractor's self-performed work shall be recognized at cost, with no built-in profit, administrative costs, or markup included in the self-performed line items;
- (2) As part of the final cost certification process, an independent certified public accountant shall verify the amount paid to the General Contractor for the self-performed work in accordance with the General Contractor Cost Certification Instructions and shall confirm that all such work was performed at cost, with no

profit, administrative costs, or markup included in the self-performed line items. In addition, the independent certified public accountant shall verify an additional 40 percent of the Development's costs in accordance with the Final Cost Certification Application Package; and

(3) No General Contractor fee shall be allowed on the self-performed work that exceeds the de minimis threshold. If the General Contractor fee attributable to the self-performed work has already been paid, the amount paid shall be paid from and reflected as a subset of the Developer Fee on the Development Final Cost Certification.

Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on July 22, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on July 23, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 142 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-48.023 Housing Credits General Program Procedures and Requirements

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order denying in part and granting in part the waiver from subsection 67-48.023(7), F.A.C. (2020), and Section 5(c) of Exhibit C to RFA 2021-103 for HTG Orchid Lake, Ltd., as follows:

Petitioner's request for waiver of subsection 67-48.023(7), F.A.C. (2020), is hereby DENIED as unnecessary to achieve the relief requested, and Petitioner's request for a waiver of Section 5(c) of Exhibit C to RFA 2021-103 is hereby GRANTED, limited to permitting the CPA to satisfy the subcontractor verification requirements set forth in the GCCC Instructions as to ACM through review of pay applications and invoices after the CPA sent the required confirmation request and received no response because ACM had ceased operations. All other final cost certification and audit requirements remain applicable.

Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on July 22, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on July 23, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 142 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-21.0025 Miscellaneous Criteria

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the waiver from paragraph 67-21.0025(7)(c), F.A.C. (2020) for Jernigan Gardens FL TC, LP, in connection with the proposed transfer of Petitioner's general partner interest, to permit Petitioner to disclose the natural persons who ultimately control the proposed new general partner beyond the third principal disclosure level and to omit disclosure of the passive investors in Hudson Valley Preservation Fund III, LLC, provided that Petitioner discloses all natural persons who ultimately control the proposed new general partner and the fund manager. All other requirements applicable to the proposed transfer remain in effect. Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on July 22, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on July 23, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 142 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-21.0025 Miscellaneous Criteria

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the waiver from paragraph 67-21.0025(7)(c), F.A.C. (2021) for Cordoba FL TC, LP, in connection with the proposed transfer of Petitioner's general partner interest to Cordoba Courts Preservation, LLC, to permit Petitioner to disclose the natural persons who ultimately control the proposed new general partner beyond the third principal disclosure level and to omit disclosure of the passive investors in Hudson Valley Preservation Fund III, LLC, provided that Petitioner discloses all natural persons who ultimately control the proposed new general partner and the fund manager. All other requirements applicable to the proposed transfer remain in effect. Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on July 22, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on July 23, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 142 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-21.003 Application and Selection Process for Developments

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order for POAH CM Redevelopment, LLC, denying Petitioner's request for waiver of paragraphs 67-21.003(14)(e) and (j), F.A.C. (01/29/2006), as those Rules are not applicable to the Development; and granting Petitioner's request for waiver of paragraphs 67-48.004(14)(e), (j), and (k), F.A.C. (04/01/2007) allowing Petitioner to:

- a. (i) reduce the total number of units subject to the existing Cutler Manor SAIL LURA from 151 to 89;
- b. (ii) proportionally reduce the existing SAIL set-asides from 5 units at 33% AMI and 146 units at 60% AMI to 3 units at 33% AMI and 86 units at 60% AMI; and
- c. (iii) amend the legal descriptions in the existing SAIL LURA and SAIL mortgage to remove the portion of the property leased for Harvest Point Phase I.

The waiver granted in paragraph b) and the related amendments shall be subject to the following conditions:

- (1) the reduction in units and release of the Harvest Point Phase I parcel shall not become effective before the closing of Harvest Point Phase I and the recording of the applicable Florida Housing land use restrictions for that Development;
- (2) the final legal descriptions and amendments to the existing SAIL LURA and SAIL mortgage must be approved by Florida Housing staff and counsel; and
- (3) all other applicable requirements remain in effect.

Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on July 22, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on July 23, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 142 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

67-48.0072 Credit Underwriting and Loan Procedures

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On August 14, 2026, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting waiver of subsections 67-48.0072(12) and 67-21.026(10), F.A.C. (2022) for Burlington Post 2, Ltd., allowing Petitioner to contract for the referenced construction services outside of the required guaranteed maximum price contract, limited to the rooftop solar photovoltaic system and lightning protection system described in the Petition. Florida

Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on July 23, 2026, and notice of the receipt of petition was published on July 24, 2026, in Vol. 52, Number 143 F.A.R.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on August 14, 2026, the Department of Financial Services, Division of State Fire Marshal (Department), received a petition for Variance from Clinton Slier. The Petition requests the following: In an existing skilled nursing facility, does the allowance of NFPA 101 (2021) 19.1.1.1.7 allow all facility windows to be rendered inoperable with screws?

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Sarah Marcos, Sarah.Marcos@myfloridacfo.com

Section VI

Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Elections

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

1S-2.042 Third-Party Voter Registration Organizations

The Department of State announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 1, 2026, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: R.A. Gray Building, 500 S Bronough Street, Room 307, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250. Teleconference information will be made available at <https://dos.fl.gov/elections/laws-rules/rules> prior to the workshop.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Updates to Rule 2.042 and incorporated reference materials to incorporate Ch. 2022-73, Laws of Fla., update contact information, and administrative experience. Copies of preliminary drafts will be made available at <https://dos.fl.gov/elections/laws-rules/rules> prior to the workshop.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Bilal Faruqui, Bilal.Faruqui@dos.fl.gov

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by

contacting: Bilal Faruqui, Bilal.Faruqui@dos.fl.gov, (850)245-6519. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Gina McLeod, Gina.McLeod@dos.fl.gov, (850)245-6225

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Elections

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

1S-2.041 FVRS Address and Eligibility Records Maintenance

The Department of State announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 1, 2026, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: R.A. Gray Building, 500 S Bronough Street, Room 307, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250. Teleconference information will be made available at <https://dos.fl.gov/elections/laws-rules/rules> prior to the workshop.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Updates to Rule 2.041 and incorporated reference materials to modernize terminology and process. Copies of preliminary drafts will be made available at <https://dos.fl.gov/elections/laws-rules/rules> prior to the workshop.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Bilal Faruqui, Bilal.Faruqui@dos.fl.gov

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Bilal Faruqui, Bilal.Faruqui@dos.fl.gov, (850)245-6519. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Gina McLeod, Gina.McLeod@dos.fl.gov, (850)245-6225

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Elections

RULE NOS.:RULE TITLES:

1S-2.009 Constitutional Amendment by Initiative Petition
1S-2.0091 Constitutional Amendment Initiative Petition;
Submission Deadline; Signature Verification

The Department of State announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 1, 2026, 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: R.A. Gray Building, 500 S Bronough Street, Room 307, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250. Teleconference information will be made available at <https://dos.fl.gov/elections/laws-rules/rules> prior to the workshop.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Updates to Rule 2.009 and 2.0091 and incorporated forms. Copies of preliminary drafts will be made available at <https://dos.fl.gov/elections/laws-rules/rules> prior to the workshop.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Bilal Faruqui, Bilal.Faruqui@dos.fl.gov

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Bilal Faruqui, Bilal.Faruqui@dos.fl.gov, (850)245-6519. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Tiffany Morley, Tiffany.Morley@dos.fl.gov, (850)245-6765

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Arts and Culture

The Florida Division of Arts and Culture announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 18, 2026, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon

PLACE: Zoom: <https://dos-myflorida.zoom.us/j/84407486555?pwd=TE1rMcDsEj6PagRyJXrk8zkbuJvuXH.1>

Meeting Id – 844 0748 6555

Passcode - 408820

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To review and score grant applications for the 2028 Museum Level 2 General Program Support Grant Program. Please visit the Division's calendar webpage for additional information: <https://dos.fl.gov/cultural/news-and-events/calendar/>

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: the Division of Arts and Culture at (850)245-6470 or visit our website at <https://dos.fl.gov/cultural/>

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Animal Industry

The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Animal Industry announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 27, 2026, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: The UF IFAS Alachua County Extension Office, 22712 W. Newberry Road, Newberry, FL 32669

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Animal Industry Working Group meeting to discuss animal industries' business updates, division updates, recommendations and relevant topics for industry.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Marti Miller (Martha.Miller@FDACS.gov), 407 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)410-0951.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Marti Miller (Martha.Miller@FDACS.gov), 407 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)410-0951. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Marti Miller (Martha.Miller@FDACS.gov), 407 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)410-0951.

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

Florida Prepaid College Board

The Florida Prepaid College Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, September 22, 2026, 3:00 p.m. (EST), or soon thereafter via webinar.

PLACE:

https://myfloridaprepaid.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uB7DQjIDRsRIUDJe5t8IQ

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a regular business meeting of the Florida ABLE, Inc. Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <https://www.myfloridaprepaid.com/about-us/board-reports/> or by calling (850)488-8514.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: fax a written request to the Florida Prepaid College Board at (850)488-3555. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

Florida Prepaid College Board

The Florida Prepaid College Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, September 22, 2026, 10:00 a.m. (EST), or soon thereafter via webinar.

PLACE:

https://myfloridaprepaid.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_E_gPU1F8QdOYPuER_gop5Q

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a regular business meeting of the Florida Prepaid College Foundation Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <https://www.myfloridaprepaid.com/about-us/board-reports/> or by calling (850)488-8514.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: fax a written request to the Florida Prepaid College Board at (850)488-3555. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

Florida Prepaid College Board

The Florida Prepaid College Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, September 23, 2026, 8:30 a.m. (EST) or soon thereafter via webinar.

PLACE:

https://myfloridaprepaid.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_0FttN1ChQDmVaGLEicosNA

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct regular business meetings of the Florida Prepaid College Board Audit and Risk Committee, the Florida Prepaid College Board Investment Committee, and the Florida Prepaid College Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <https://www.myfloridaprepaid.com/about-us/board-reports/> or by calling (850)488-8514.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: fax a written request to the Florida Prepaid College Board at (850)488-3555. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

Emerald Coast Regional Council

The Regional Rural Transportation Planning Organization announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 27, 2026, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: 95 Circle Dr, DeFuniak Springs, FL, United States

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The RRTP TAC will meet August 27, 2026 at 9:30 a.m. at 9:30 a.m. at 95 Circle Dr, DeFuniak Springs, FL, United States.

Join us live via GoToWebinar!

1. Click to register and a link to the Webinar will be emailed to you:

www.gotostage.com/channel/ecrc

2. When it is time for the webinar, click the emailed link, then choose one of the following audio options:

TO USE YOUR COMPUTER'S AUDIO:

When the Webinar begins, you will be connected to audio using your computer's microphone and speakers (VoIP). A headset is recommended.

-- OR --

TO USE YOUR TELEPHONE:

If you prefer to use your phone, you must select "Use Telephone" after joining the webinar and call in using the numbers provided.

Public Forum

All comments submitted at least 24 hours before are guaranteed to be read during the public meeting. Comments submitted after the 24-hour deadline will be recorded and disseminated to the Board.

Participation is asked for without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. Persons who believe they have been discriminated against on these conditions may file a complaint with the Title VI Coordinator, (850)332-7976.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Marketing@ecrc.org

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Marketing and Outreach toll-free at (800)226-8914 or TTY 711, or by emailing marketing@ecrc.org. Para informacion en espanol, puede llamar a Ada Clark al (850)332-7976, ext. 278 o TTY 711. Si necesita acomodaciones especiales, por favor llame 48 horas de antemano. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

South Florida Water Management District

The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, August 28, 2026, 11:00 a.m.

Big Cypress Basin Board Meeting

PLACE: Collier County Board of County Commissioners Chambers, 3299 Tamiami Trail East, 3rd Floor, Naples, FL 34112

Members of the public may participate and provide public comment in person or via Zoom, a media technology free for the public to use.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This is a public meeting of the Big Cypress Basin Board to discuss and consider activities impacting the Big Cypress Basin of the

South Florida Water Management District; approving the submittal of the millage rate for Fiscal Year 2026-2027, requesting the Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District to levy ad valorem taxes within the Big Cypress Basin based on the rate to finance Basin functions contained in Fiscal Year 2026-2027 Basin budget; and submittal of the Fiscal Year 2026-2027 Basin budget to the Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District for inclusion in the District's budget. The public and stakeholders will have an opportunity to view and comment on the meeting by attending in person or utilizing the following link: <https://sfwmd.link/4pedN52>. The link will go live at approximately 11:00 a.m. on August 28, 2026.

The Big Cypress Basin Board may take official action at the meeting on any item appearing on the agenda and on any item that is added to the agenda as a result of a change to the agenda approved by the presiding officer of the meeting pursuant to Section 120.525, Florida Statutes.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Celia Seifert at cseifert@sfwmd.gov. The agenda will be posted to the District's website www.SFWMD.gov/meetings, seven days prior to the meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least seven days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Molly Brown, District Clerk, at mobrown@sfwmd.gov. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Celia Seifert at cseifert@sfwmd.gov

SPACE FLORIDA

The Space Florida announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 26, 2026, 3:00 p.m. (EDT)

PLACE: (321)234-5533, Conference ID: 434 199 308#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Investment Committee Meeting

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Terrie Ireland at tireland@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301, Ext: 241

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the

agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Terrie Ireland at tireland@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301, Ext: 241. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Terrie Ireland at tireland@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301, Ext: 241

SPACE FLORIDA

The Space Florida announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 27, 2026, 1:00 p.m. (EDT)

PLACE: Teleconference Call-in Number: (321)234-5533, Conference ID 241 573 321#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

Audit, Accountability, and Governance Committee Meeting

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Terrie Ireland at tireland@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301, Ext: 241

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Terrie Ireland at tireland@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301, Ext: 241. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Terrie Ireland at tireland@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301, Ext: 241

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Acupuncture

The Florida Board of Acupuncture announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 11, 2026, 9:00 a.m., E.T.

PLACE: [://meet.goto.com/659073965](https://meet.goto.com/659073965)

You can also dial in using your phone.

United States: +1(571)317-3116

Access Code: 659-073-965

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The general business of the Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <https://floridasacupuncture.gov/meeting-information/>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Board Staff at (850)245-4161 or MQA.Acupuncture@flhealth.gov or 4052

Bald Cypress Way, #C-06, Tallahassee, FL 32399. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Board Staff at (850)245-4161 or MQA.Acupuncture@flhealth.gov or 4052 Bald Cypress Way, #C-06, Tallahassee, FL 32399.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Acupuncture

The Florida Board of Acupuncture announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 4, 2026, 9:00 a.m., E.T

PLACE: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

<https://meet.goto.com/659073965>

You can also dial in using your phone.

United States: +1(571)317-3116

Access Code: 659-073-965

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The general business of the Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <https://floridasacupuncture.gov/meeting-information/>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Board Staff at (850)245-4161 or MQA.Acupuncture@flhealth.gov or 4052 Bald Cypress Way, #C-06,

Tallahassee, FL 32399. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Board Staff at (850)245-4161 or MQA.Acupuncture@flhealth.gov or 4052 Bald Cypress Way, #C-06, Tallahassee, FL 32399.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Nursing

The Board of Nursing announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 24, 2026, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Weblink: <https://meet.goto.com/589276869>

Dial in: (872)240-3212 --- Access Code: 589-276-869

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

Probable Cause Panel meeting for public disciplinary cases.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting:

<https://floridasnursing.gov/meetinginformation/upcomingmeetings/>

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the Board office at (850)245-4125. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Refugee Services

The Tallahassee Refugee Task Force announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, September 8, 2026, 10:00 a.m. - 12:00 noon

PLACE: Meeting will take place via the Microsoft Teams platform. Use the below link to connect to the meeting:

<https://teams.microsoft.com/join/282780926497869?p=xpcEUHu6E8eFNR4MIo>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the Tallahassee Area Refugee Task Force meeting is to increase awareness of the refugee populations, share best practices, spot trends in refugee populations, build collaborations between agencies, help create good communication among service providers, get informed about upcoming community events, and discuss refugee program service needs and possible solutions to meeting those needs.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jawid Sultany at (850)717-4501 or David Draper at (407)317-7335.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jawid Sultany at (850)717-4501 or David Draper at (407)317-7335. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Jawid Sultany at (850)717-4501 or David Draper at (407)317-7335.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

The Florida Department of Financial Services Division of State Fire Marshal announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, September 22, 2026, 10:00 A.M.

PLACE: GoToMeeting/Video/Conference Call

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

Quarterly meeting of the Florida Fire Safety Board

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone.

<https://meet.goto.com/195002717>

You can also dial in using your phone.

Access Code: 195-002-717

United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679

United States: +1 (571) 317-3116

Join from a video-conferencing room or system.

Meeting ID: 195-002-717

Dial in or type: 67.217.95.2 or inroomlink.goto.com

Or dial directly: [195002717@67.217.95.2](https://meet.goto.com/195002717) or 67.217.95.2##195002717

Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:

<https://meet.goto.com/install>

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Section Chief Ronald Dilworth, Division of State Fire Marshal, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Regulatory Licensing Section, 200 E Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342, or by calling (850) 413-3670.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Regulatory Licensing Section, 200 E Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342, or by calling (850) 413-3670. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Regulatory Licensing Section, 200 E Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342, or by calling (850) 413-3670.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

OIR – Insurance Regulation

The Florida Health Insurance Advisory Board (Board) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 25, 2026, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: The meeting will be by teleconference. Members of the public who wish to listen in to the conference call are invited to listen in by calling 1(866)299-7949, Participant Code: 1433866#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Board will conduct the regular and general business of the organization.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jack McDermott at FHIAB2022@gmail.com

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jack McDermott at FHIAB2022@gmail.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Division of Workforce Services

The Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 26, 2026, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission, 1211 Governors Square Boulevard, Suite 300, Tallahassee, Florida 32301. Attendance by telephone is also available by calling (850)988-5144 and entering phone conference ID: 282 335 254#.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Disposition of cases pending before the Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission and Commission business. No public testimony or comment will be taken.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: the office of the Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission at RAAC.Inquiries@commerce.fl.gov or by visiting <https://floridajobs.org/workforce-resources/reemployment-assistance-appeals-commission/about-the-reemployment-assistance-appeals-commission/raac-notices>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the Commission Clerk at (850)692-0180. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the

Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: the Commission Clerk at (850)692-0180.

SENIOR CONNECTION CENTER, INC.

The Senior Connection Center announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, September 8, 2026, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Offices of Senior Connection Center, 8928 Brittany Way, Tampa FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Scheduled meeting of Senior Connection Center's Board of Directors. Items related to business and Board of Directors oversight.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Paula Nelson via email at paula.nelson@sccmail.org or by phone at (813)676-5583.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Paula Nelson via email at paula.nelson@sccmail.org or by phone at (813)676-5583. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Paula Nelson via email at paula.nelson@sccmail.org or by phone at (813)676-5583.

MOFFITT CANCER CENTER & RESEARCH INSTITUTE

The H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute, Inc. announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 27, 2026, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Moffitt Cancer Center, Stabile Research Building, Ferman Family Conference Room

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the general business of the Board of Directors

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Brielle Humphreys at (813)745-8525, 12902 USF Magnolia Drive, CEO Office, Tampa, FL 33612

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Brielle Humphreys at (813)745-8525, 12902 USF Magnolia Drive, CEO Office, Tampa, FL 33612. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Brielle Humphreys at (813)745-8525, 12902 USF Magnolia Drive, CEO Office, Tampa, FL 33612.

FLORIDA INDEPENDENT LIVING COUNCIL

The Florida Independent Living Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 2, 2026, 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: CIL Jacksonville

2709 Art Museum Dr. Jacksonville, FL 32207

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Join the Florida Independent Living Council for a discussion and give feedback on Florida's need for more accessible and equitable services to live independently in the community.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Independent Living Council, Inc., 1882 Capital Circle NE, Suite 202, Tallahassee, FL 32308, (850)488-5624 or toll free 1(877)822-1993 or email info@floridasilc.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Beth Meyer, PA, ADA at beth@floridasilc.org or (850)488-5624 to discuss your accessibility needs. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

FLORIDA INDEPENDENT LIVING COUNCIL

The Florida Independent Living Council Public Forum Meeting announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: September 9, 2026, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Suncoast

3281 17TH ST. SARASOTA, FL 34235

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Join the Florida Independent Living Council for a Public Forum discussion and give feedback on Florida's need for more accessible and equitable services to live independently in the community.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Independent Living Council, Inc., 1882 Capital Circle NE, Suite 202, Tallahassee, FL 32308, (850)488-5624 or toll free 1(877)822-1993 or email info@floridasilc.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Beth Meyer, PA, ADA at beth@floridasilc.org or (850)488-5624. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

Section VII Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Finance

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Office of Financial Regulation has received the petition for declaratory statement from Greencard Payments Inc. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Chapter 560, Florida Statutes, as it applies to the petitioner.

On August 14, 2026, the Office of Financial Regulation (Consumer Finance) received a Petition for Declaratory Statement from Greencard Payments Inc. The petition seeks a declaratory statement from the Office on whether Petitioner's proposed business model (of a payment technology facilitator providing software infrastructure that allows consumers and merchants to connect for ACH-based payments. Petitioner does not issue payment instruments, hold stored value, or engage in currency exchange) requires licensure as a money transmitter or other money services business under Part II, Chapter 560, Florida Statutes. Except for good cause shown, motions for leave to intervene must be filed within 21 days after publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Office of Financial Regulation, P.O. Box 8050, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050, (850)410-9889, Agency.Clerk@flofr.com.

Please refer all comments to: Agency Clerk, Office of Financial Regulation, P.O. Box 8050, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050, (850)410-9889, Agency.Clerk@flofr.com.

Section VIII Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Section IX

Notice of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X

Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee

NONE

Section XI

Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing

BARR AND BARR

UF-672 School of Music Envelope and Finishes Bid Packages
Barr & Barr is seeking qualified bids for the UF-672 Music School Envelope and Finishes bid packages. The project is located on main campus in Gainesville, FL and includes a new 49,000 SF Performance Hall addition and expansion. Bid packages include thin brick, misc metals, millwork, roofing, metal panels, waterproofing, doors, frames, hardware, curtainwall, acoustical ceilings, drywall, painting, flooring, acoustic room components, stucco, theater equipment, MEPS, sitework, and landscaping. Scope start date is anticipated as 12/1/26. Contact Lauren Pelini at LPelini@barrandbarr.com for additional information.

Section XII

Miscellaneous

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraphs 120.55(1)(b)7. – 8., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 11, 2026, and 3:00 p.m., Monday, August 17, 2026.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
6A-1.09953	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
12-17.008	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
12A-1.097	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
12A-1.097	8/14/2026	9/3/2026

25-6.003	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
25-9.020	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
25-9.060	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
25-9.071	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
25-30.010	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
25-30.033	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.037	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.0372	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.110	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.115	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.140	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.255	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
25-30.433	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.434	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
25-30.444	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
25-30.445	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
40E-7.511	8/17/2026	9/6/2026
40E-7.539	8/17/2026	9/6/2026
59C-1.002	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
61B-19.001	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
64B16-28.750	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
65C-20.008	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
65C-20.012	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
65C-22.001	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
65C-22.010	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
68B-14.009	8/12/2026	9/1/2026
69D-2.001	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
69K-17.0015	8/14/2026	9/3/2026
69L-7.730	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
69L-7.740	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
69L-7.750	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
69L-8.071	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
69L-8.072	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
69L-8.073	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
69L-8.074	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
69L-22.006	8/13/2026	9/2/2026
LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES		
Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
14-10.0043	4/11/2025	**/**/****
65C-9.004	3/31/2022	**/**/****

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Suwannee River Water Management District

Notice of Publication of the Annual Regulatory Plan

As set forth in section 120.74(2)(a)3., Florida Statutes, notice is hereby given that the Suwannee River Water Management District has published, as of August 11, 2026, its 2026-2027 Annual Regulatory Plan at:
<https://www.mysuwanneeriver.com/436/Regulatory-Plans>

Section XIII**Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week****INDEX TO RULES FILED BETWEEN AUGUST 10, 2026, AND AUGUST 14, 2026**

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION**State Board of Education**

6A-1.09953	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/114	52/142
------------	---------	--------	--------	--------

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

12-17.008	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/112	
-----------	---------	--------	--------	--

Sales and Use Tax, Surtax, Surcharge, and Fees; Communications Services Tax

12A-1.097	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/114	52/153
12A-1.097	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/114	52/153

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

25-6.003	8/12/26	9/1/26	52/109	
25-9.020	8/12/26	9/1/26	52/109	
25-9.050	8/12/26	9/1/26	52/109	
25-9.071	8/12/26	9/1/26	52/109	
25-30.010	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/109	
25-30.033	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.037	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.0372	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.110	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.115	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.140	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.255	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/109	
25-30.433	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.434	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/109	
25-30.444	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	
25-30.445	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/115	

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS**South Florida Regional Planning Council**

29J-3.001	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.002	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.003	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.004	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.005	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.006	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.007	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.008	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.009	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.010	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.011	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.012	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.013	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.014	8/11/26	reviewed
29J-3.015	8/11/26	reviewed

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION**Certificate of Need**

59C-1.002	8/12/26	9/1/26	52/104
-----------	---------	--------	--------

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes**

61B-19.001	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/100	52/142
------------	---------	--------	--------	--------

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**Division of Resource Management**

62C-38.002	8/11/26	reviewed
62C-38.003	8/11/26	reviewed
62C-38.004	8/11/26	reviewed
62C-38.005	8/11/26	reviewed
62C-38.006	8/11/26	reviewed
62C-38.008	8/11/26	reviewed
62C-38.010	8/11/26	reviewed
62C-38.011	8/11/26	reviewed

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**Board of Pharmacy**

64B16-28.750	8/12/26	9/1/26	52/95	52/131
--------------	---------	--------	-------	--------

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**Family Safety and Preservation Program**

65C-20.008	8/12/26	9/1/26	51/247	52/125
65C-20.012	8/12/26	9/1/26	51/247	52/125
65C-22.001	8/12/26	9/1/26	51/247	52/125
65C-22.010	8/12/26	9/1/26	51/247	52/125

Agency for Persons with Disabilities

65G-4.014	8/10/26	8/30/26	52/133
65G-4.015	8/10/26	8/30/26	52/133
65G-4.016	8/10/26	8/30/26	52/133
65G-4.017	8/10/26	8/30/26	52/133
65G-11.004	8/10/26	8/30/26	52/133

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION**Marine Fisheries**

68B-14.009	8/12/26	9/1/26	52/95
------------	---------	--------	-------

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES**Division of Criminal Investigations**

69D-2.001	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/60
-----------	---------	--------	-------

Division of Funeral, Cemetery, and Consumer Services

69K-17.0015	8/14/26	9/3/26	52/60
-------------	---------	--------	-------

Division of Workers' Compensation

69L-7.730	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/114
69L-7.740	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/114
69L-7.750	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/113
69L-8.071	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/60
69L-8.072	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/60
69L-8.073	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/60
69L-8.074	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/60
69L-22.006	8/13/26	9/2/26	52/114

LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE REVIEW/APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES**DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION**

14-10.0043	4/11/25	**/**/**	51/18
------------	---------	----------	-------

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**Family Safety and Preservation Program**

65C-9.004	3/31/22	**/**/**	48/28
-----------	---------	----------	-------

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.
